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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY SEP 2 0 2007

NEWARK VICINAGE )
T 830 (p 8O %ﬁrxﬁ

ARELIA MARGARITA TAVERAS,

PLAINTIFF,

V.

RESORTS INTERNATIONAL IHOTEL,
INC., D/B/A RESORTS [TOTEL AND
CASINO (A wholly owned subsidiary of
Sun lnternational Hotels Limited),
COLONIAL CAPITAL, INC., SUN
INTERNATIONAL [HOTELS LIMITED,
BOB BENZ, individually and as an agent of
Resorts International [lotel, Inc., D/B/A
Resorts Hotel And Casino, BETTY
DIANDRIA, individually and as an agent of
Resorts Intemnational Hotel, Inc., /B/A
Resorts Hotel And Casino, AGGIE RENA,
individually and as an agent of JOIIN DOE
CORPORATION, TRUMP PLAZA
HOTEIL AND CASINOQ, MGM GRAND
HOTLL AND CASINO, TAI MAJAL
HOTLL AND CASINO, TROPICANA
[TIOTEL AND CASINO, HARRAH'S
SIIOWBOAT HOTEL AND CASINO,
BALLY'S PARK PL.ACE HOTEL AND
CASINO, HARRAH'S
ENTERTAINMENT, INC., JOHN DOE
CORPORATION, JOHN DOE#1-5, ct al.

PARTIES

Arelia Margarita Taveras
Appearing Pro S¢

7611 West 110" Street
Bloomington, Minncsota 55438
Telephone: (612) 232-2349

Email: Arcliamtaveras@iyahoo.com

Defendants:

WILLIAM T. WALSH, CLERK

Civil Action No.:

COMPLAINT
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Resorts International Hotel. [nc., D/B/A Resorts [Iotel And Casino
1133 Boardwalk

Atlantic City, New Jerscy 08401

Telephone: 1-800-336-6378

Colonial Capital, Inc.

1133 Boardwalk

Atlantic City. New Jersey 08401
Telephone: 1-800-336-6378

Bob Benz, Individually and as an agent of Resorts Hotel and Casino
1133 Boardwalk

Atlantic City, New Jerscy 08401

Telephone: 1-800-336-6378

Betty Diandria, Individually and as an ageni of Resorts Hotel and Casino
1133 Boardwalk

Atlantic City, New Jersey 08401

Telephone: 1-800-336-6378

Sun International Hotels Limited
1132 Boardwalk

Atlantic City, New Jersey 08401
Telephone: 1-800-336-6378

Ttump Plaza Hotel And Casino
The Boardwalk at Mississippi Avenue
Atlantic City, New Jersey 08401

Taj Majal Hotel And Casino

1000 Boardwalk at Virginia Avenue
Atlantic City, NJ 08401

lelephone: (609) 449-1000

MGM Grand Hotel and Casino
3799 Las Vegas Boulevard South
1.as Vegas, Nevada 89109

Tropicana [lotel And Casino
2831 Boardwalk

Atlantic City, NJ 08401
Telephone: (609) 340-4000

Harrahs Showboat Hotel And Casino
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%01 Boardwalk
Atlantic City, NJ 08401

Harrahs Entertainment, Inc.
One Ccasar's Palacc Drive
Las Vepas, Nevada

Bally's Park Place

1901 Boardwalk

Atlantic City, NJ 08401

John Doe Corporation

Tohn Doe#tl-5

JURISDICTION

1. Count 1 of this action is brought pursuant 1o the provision of the Racksteer
Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Act ("RICO"), codified at 18 U.5.C. §1961. As
such, the Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of Count 1 of this procceding

pursuant to 28 U.8.C. §1331 and 28 U.8.C. §1391(b) and (c). The court has jurisdiction

over the remaining counts of this action, each of those counts being related lo the ¢laims
set forth in Count I that they form parl of the same casc or controversy under Article 111

of the United States Congtitution.
VENUE

2. Venue is proper in this judicial district, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §1391(b) and (¢).
because the Defendants reside, are licensed to do busincss and are doing business,

and/or are found in this judicial district, thete is personal jurisdiction over the Defendant

al the time this action was commenced, and further because all or a substantial part of

the cvents or omissions giving rise to Plainti(f's claims ocewrred in this district.

CAUSE OF ACTTON

3. Plainiff, Arelia Margarita Taveras, appearing pro se in this action and as (or her
complaini against defendants Resorts International Hotel, Inc., D/B/A Resorts Hotel
And Casine (A wholly owned subsidiary Of Sun International [lotels Limited).
Colonial Capital, Inc., Sun International Hotels Limited, Bob Benz, individually and as

an agent of Resorts International Hotel, Inc., D/B/A Resorts Hotel And Casino, Betty
6
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Diandria, , individually and as an agent of Resorts International Hotel, Inc., D/B/A
Resorts Hotel And Casino, Trump Plaza Hotel And Casino, Taj Majal Hotel And
Casino, Tropicana Hotel And Casino, Harrah's Showboat Hotel And Casino, Harrah's
Entertainment, Inc., John Doe Corporation, John Doe, et al., alleges and states as

follows:

1.) That plaintiff, Arclia M. Taveras ("Taveras"), is a resident of Minnesota, al
present, and at all times material had been a resident of the ¢ity of Corona, County af

Queens, State of New York during the time the present cause of action arose.

2.) Plainiiff Taveras was admitted to the practice of law in May of 2004 and had

been sel(-employed since then working al The Taveras Law Group, PLLC.

3.) That laveras was working and functioning as an attorney on a daily basis,

attending court appcarances and consulting with clicnts.

4.) That Taveras had a thriving law practice consisting of over four hundred (400)

clients and customers.

5.} That, in addition to her law practice, Taveras was a radio consultant with Radio
Station 97.1 and frequently appeared on NBC, Univision and Telemundo as a legal

consultant.

6.) That Taveras at the time she began her practice was thirty-lwo years of age and
owned her own condominium and supported her parents solely from her work and

income.

7.) That Tavcras was earning an income a substantial income in the operation of

her practice.

8.) Defendant Resorls international Hotel, Tne., d/b/a Resorls Hotel and Casino,
("Resorts Casino') is, and al all times material has been, a corporation duly orpanized
and cxisting under the laws of the State of New Jersey and having its principal placc of
business located at 1133 Boardwalk, Atlantic City, County of Atiantic, which operates
and conducts business as Resorts Hotel and Casino at present (hereinalter referred to as

"Resorts').
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9.) Delendant COLONIAL CAPITAL, INC., is an owner or has a substantial stake
in Resorts [nternational Hotel, Inc., d/b/a Resorts Hotel and Casino, Colonial Capital,
Inc. ("Resorts Casine") is, and at all times material hag been, a corporation duly
organized and existing under the laws of the State of New Jersey and having its
principal place of business located at 1133 Boardwalk, Atlantic City, County of
Atlantic. which operates and conducts business as Resorts Hotel and Casino at present

(hercinafier referred to as "Colonial Capital").

10.) Defendant SUN INTERNATIONAL IIOTELS LIMITED, is an owner or
has a substantial stake in Resorts International llotel, Inc., d/b/a Resorts Hotel and
Casino, as in Resorts International Hotel, Inc., d/b/a Resoris Hotel and Casino, is a
subsidiary of the SUN INTLRNATIONAL HOTELS LIMITED, is, and at all times
material has been, a corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the Siate
of New Jersey and having its principal place of business located at 1133 Boardwalk,

Atlantic City, Counly of Atlantic, which operatcs and conducts business as Resorts

Hotel and Casino at present, (hereinalter referred to as "Sun Hotels").

11.}) BOB BENZ, individually and as an agent of Resorts International Hotel,
Ine., D/B/A Resorts Hotel And Casino, BETTY DIANDRIA, individually and as an
agent of Resorts International [lotel, Inc., D/B/A Resorts Hotel And Casino, worked
and continue to be employed at "Resorts Casino," at all times and dates matcrial and

relevant to this action, (hereinafter referred to as "Benz" and "Diandria" respectively).

12.) Delendant TRUMP PLAZA HOTEL AND CASINO, is, and at all times
material has been, a corporation duly organized and existing under the Yaws of the State
of New Jersey and having its principal place of business located at The Boardwalk at
Mississippi Avenue, County of Atlantic, which operates and conducts business as

Trump Plaza Hotel and Casino at present (hereinafter referred to as "Trump Plaza”).

13.} TAJ MAJAL HOTEL AND CASINO, is, and at all times matcrial has
been, a corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the State ol New
Jerscy and having its principal place of business located at 1000 Boardwalk al Virginia
Avenue, County of Atlantic, which operates and conducts business as Taj Majal Hotel

and Casino at present (hereinafter referred to as "I'aj Mahal").
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14.) TROPICANA HOTEL AND CASINO, is and at all times material has
been, a corporation duly organized and cxisting under the laws of the State of New
Jersey and having its principal place of business located al 2831 Boardwalk, County of
Atlantic, which operates and conducts business as Tropicana Hotel and Casino at

present (hereinafter referred to as "Tropicana®).

15.) HARRAILIS SHOWBOAT 1HOTLL AND CASINO, is and at all times
material has been, a corporation duly organized and existing under the laws ol the State
of New Jersey and having its principal place of business located at 801 Boardwalk,
County of Atlantic, which operates and conducts husiness as Harrah's Showboat Totel

and Casino (hereinafter referred to as "Showboat Casing™).

16.} [TARRAIIS ENTERTAINMENT, INC. is and at all times material has
bheen, a corporation duly organized and existing under the laws ol the State of New
Jersey and Nevada and having its principal place of business located at One Ceasar's
Palace Drive, Las Vegas, Nevada, which operates and conducts business as Harrah's

Showboat Hotel and Casino (hercinafler referred to a "Harrah's Management”).

17.) MGM Grand HOTEL AND CASINO, is and at all times material has
been, a corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the Statc of New
Jersey and Nevada and having its principal place of business located at 3799 Las Vegas
Boulevard South, Las Vegas, Nevada, which operates and conducts busincss as MGM

Grand Hotel and Casino (hereinafter referred to a "MGM Grand”).

18.) BAILY PARK PLACE, is and at ali times matcrial has been, a
corporation duly organized and existing undor the Jaws of the State of Now Jersey and
having its principal place of busincss located at 1901 Boardwalk, County of Atlantic,
which operates and conducts business as Bally's Park Place Hotel and Casino

hereinafter relcrred to as "Bally's Casino").
Y ‘

19.) Plaintiff is informed and believes, and on the basis of that information and
beliel allcpes, that at all imes mentioned in this complaint, Defendants were the agents
and cmployees of their codefendants, and in doing the things alleged in this
complainl  were acting within the  course and scope of that ageney

and employment.

9
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20.) On or about September of 2003, Plaintiff Taveras became a patron of
Defendants' casino, she had a Resorts Casino card number of #2523315 and her hosi

was Resorts Casino representative, Bob Benz.

21.) As plaintiffs host, Benz, provided limo services to transport plaintiff to
and from the casino, hotel accommodalions, casino club privileges and restaurant

"comps” free of charge, bascd on the plaintiff's gaming activities,

22 That plainti{" would call her host, Benz, each time she desired Lo play and
that, Benz reviewed plaintiffs status and gaming at the casino when providing these
services.

23)) That plaintiff and her host, Benz came to know of each other, through

regular casino visits and tclephone calls.

24 That Benz was personally familiar with all the habits and gaming activities
of plaintilf Taveras at Resorts Casino from gaming reports, personal observation and

staff assessments/reports.

25.) That after Benv authorized plaintiffs "comps” at the casino and ordered
limousines to pick plaintiff up at her home to transport her to and from the casino al

varying hours of the day.

20) That plaintiff would visit defendant's Resorls Casino jor recreational
gambling four (4) to five (5) times per year for entertaimment and recreational purposes

only.

27.) That during plaintiff's tenure as a patron of defendant Resorts casino,
plaintiff became known to the defendant and its stall by name and was even permitted
to bring her dog to the gaming tables. ‘That the staff at defendant Resorts Casino would
ropc off a gaming tables in anticipation of plaintiff's gaming activities and
accommodate her accordingly.

28.) That during plaintiff's tenure as a patron of defendant Resorts casino
plaintiff established a relationship with the staff and the management of the Resorts

Casino.

10
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29.) That the staff nicknamed her "RlackJack Queen” because she would

gamble at the BlackJack tables for endless hours.

30.) That during plaintiff's (enure as a patron of defendant Resorls Casino
plaintifl came lo rely and {eal safe with the stall and accommodations provided by

defendant.

31.) That during plaintiff's tcnure as a patron of delendant Resorls Casino,
plainti{l” cntrusted her care and well being. both in being shuttled to the hotel via

limousine and when lodging at the hotel.

32 That defendant Resorts Casino provided security staff o cscort her 1o her

rourn if she felt unsafe or was carrying huge amounts of cash.

33) That plaintiff entrusted her carc and well being to the staff and

management of defendant Resorts Casino during her stays there while gambling.

34.) That during plaintiff's tenure as a pairon of defendant Resorts Casino,
plaintiff trusted and relied on the representations made to her by defendant and its

casino Resorts' staff,

35) That defendant and plaintifl nurtured a fiduciary-type o [ relationship with
each ather, as. plaintifl gambled large sums of cash and defendant would provide

exclusive, safe and personal service to accommodate plaintiff.

36.) That while gambling at defendant Resorts Casino, the defendant Benz and
casino staff became intimately aware of the plaintiff's lifestyle, gaming habits and

personal information.

37) Defendant would regularly provide Plaintiff Taveras with limousines,

suites, food and entertainment o conlinue Taveras' patronage at Resorts Casino.

38.) During the years of 2004 and 2005, Taveras to further continue her
patronage, defendant Resorts Casino would send gambling enticements, ads, literature,
media kits. casino invilationals, casino event promotions, gambling tournament
invitations, promos for free televisions, elc. every day via the United Slates Postal

Service, several promotions at a time,

11
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39.) During the months of Scptember of 2003 through QOctober of 2004,
‘laveras' exhibited normal gumbling habits at Resorts Casino. She would come with
family, cat, retreat to her room to rest, take regular breaks to go to the restroom,
gambled for a limited amount of time and use the recreational facilities afforded to her
by Resorts Casino.

40.) In November of 2004, Taveras' gaming patlerns began to change.

41.) From January 2005 through June, Plaintiff's gambling had increased in
frequency and duration.

42) Plaintil hegan lo gamble for several duays straight, often fulling asleep at
the tables.

43) Plainti(T” would come to the vasino alone often exhibiting anti-social and

aggressive behavior when gambling.
44} Plaintilf cxhibited aggressive behavior towards other players.

45.) Plaintiff would not cat and gambled for consecutive days without a rest

periods or use of the bathroom/restrooms.

46.) Plaintiff began to pass out in the elevators due to her exircme exhaustion,

lack of sleep and disorientation after gaming lor several days in & row.

47.) Plaintifi's gambling went from recrcational Lo compulsive during the latter

part of 2004 and the ycar of 2005.

48.) In the months of January and February of 2005, Taveras had gambled for

over 500 hours in total at defendant Resorts Casino.

49 At the beginning of March one of the defendant Resorts Casino's night

managers/dealers, (hereinafter referred to as "John Doel1"), advised plainiift Taveras
that she "...look tired and are winning oo much...to play the next day when you got
more sleep, you have been gambling for more than two days without sleep that's not
normal.”

50.) Taveras obscrved that the dealer was being questioned by a "pit boss,”
John Doc#2, regarding Taveras' paming at the table, but, that her behavior went ignored
even after reported to upper management.

12
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51) In the month of March of 2005, Taveras gambled from March 19-21,
March 25-28, March 31-April 1, each gambling stint was characterized by consecutive
days of gambling, without cating or sleeping, all observed under the supervision ol

Resorts Casino staff and management.

52.) That by the end ol March, one of the Resorts Casino's managers, John
Doe#3, (wld her that "...1 could lose my job for telling you this, but, you need 10 go
home, the devil's gol you with this game, thesc people don't care about you here, you
are addicted to this thing, go home, they know they got you here, you arc going to cnd
up giving them all your moncy!" Taveras continucd to gamble uninterrupted by statf

under the supervision of Resorl Casino management.

53) In April of 2005, Taveras gambled April 1-4, April 6-7, gach gambling
stint was characterized by consecutive days of gambling, without cating or sleeping, all

under the supervision of defendant Resort Casino’s management and stafl.

54.) In the month of May, Taveras went 1o The MGM Grand in Las Vegas and
gambled from May 31- June 1% of 2005 on a free invitation by the casino as a result of
the release of information between Resorts Casino and the MGM Grand, through thear

mutual marketing consultant Auggic Rena of John Dee Corporation.

55.) That John Doc Corporation was the disseminator of information between
casinos throughout the country and outside of the United States. That it collaborated
with casinos lo provide gaming information, player stats, play wins/losses, player

personal information, playcr activities, player habits, player preferences, ete.

56.) That MGM Grand and Resorts Casino collaborated with each other to
intentionally and maliciously entice and lure a plaintilf, a known compulsive gambler
into further gaming activilies outside of the stale of New Jerscy in violation of "RICO"

statutes.

57.) In the month of Junc of 2005, Taveras gambled from Junc 23-28 this
gambling period was chavactcrized by consecutive days of gambling, without eating or
slecping. The only snacks Taveras had were orange juice and snickers bars provided by

Resorls Casino.

13
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38) T'hat on or aboul June 28"‘, 2005, one ol the dealers, John Doe #4 in the
private gambling area exclusive to the plaintilf, the female dealer mentioned, "...you
are winning go home, you are tired and no really paying attention to this game, there's
something up with you, you can't possibly want to gamble more, you are exhausted and

this thing is starting to get you..."

59.) In the month of July 2005, Taverag gambled on July 7-12 and July 25-26
of 2005 each gambling period was characterized by consecutive days of gambling,

without eating or sleeping.

60.) That by the end of July of 2005, Taveras completely isolating hersell from
other gamblers and betting entire tables to avoid permitting other betiers 1o gamble near

her.

61.) That her aggression and isolation was obscrved by management and one
of the managers John Doe #5refused to permit her 1o continue gambling alone on July
11. 2005. He stated that "...you cannot monopolize a table, plus, you arc too tired to
keep all the counts straight, maybe you should return another day.” Taveras refused and

requested her own table, a request that was honored by the pit, boss, Betty Diandna.

62.) That Plaintiffs work began to suffer as well because of her gaming
activities.
63.) Plaintiff missed appointments, court appearances and barcly worked as a

functioning attorney due to her inability to refrain from gambling. She was barely at

work and when she was, she was obsessed with gambling thoughts.

64.) [n the month of August 2005, Taveras gambled from August 1, 2005 all
night, on August 8-12, August 14-16, August 29-Scptember 1, 2003, each pambling

period was characterized by conseculive days of gambling, without cating or sleeping.

63.) In the month of September of 2003, Taveras gambled from September 1-2,
September 13-15, September 19-21, 2005, each gambling period was characterized by

consecutive days of gambling, without ealing or sleeping.

66.) That on each gambling instance, the Defendant observed the plaintiff's
compulsive behavior and addiction to gambling through wires, hidden cameras, casingo
bosses, management, video and electronic wiring,

14
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67.) That the Defendant was aware of plaintiff's addiction and compulsion
towards gambling through its reporting and surveillance of the plaintiff, but,
intentionally, wantonly and maliciously continued to send a limousine to her home at
various hours of the night, to bring her to the casino in lurtherance of her addiction and

promoting, luring and enticing her towards compulsive gambling.

68.) ‘Taveras was compulsively gambling and exhibiting a frenetic, addictive,
neurotic state of mind causing her to be unable to ceasc gambling activities within 4
reasonable time, her state of mind accompanied by perceplible acts or series of acts

which presented clear and recognizable signs of "addiction to gambling."

69.) That in the beginning of 2005, Plaintiff gambled an average of once a
month, by the end of June, the plaintiff visited the casino 2-3 times per week, then

almost daily.

70.} By the end of July, Plaintiff was gambling 5 days per week and losing an

average of Five Thousand ($5,000) Dellars an hour.

71.) In July, Plaintifl was approached by Resorts Casino Pit Boss Betty and
mentioned to her that she thought "there was something wrong with me, I am gambling
too many hours and losing too much and 1 never leave while Tam ahead, T think there is

something wrong with me."

72.) In August of 2005, Bob Benz, Resorts Casino Manager telephoned
Plainti[F Taveras and told her, "...that you must sign a Waiver of [iability [or the casino
if T wished to continue gambling there." |

73.) Taveras continued to gamble at Resorts until September 20, 2005, where
she continued to lose approximately One [Tundred Fifty Thousand ($150,000) Dollars

over a4 weekend of continuous gambling.

74.) On September 20, 2005 Plaintiff refused to sign the Waiver of Liability
for the benefit of the Delendant, who knew she had a problem and attempted to protect

itself, a week later she was terminated from the ¢asino.,

75.) a tesult of the Plaintiff's compulsive gambling nurtured and negligently
obscrved and recklessly disregardedsignored by Defendant and its staff, plaintiff was

disbarred from the practice of law in the statc of New York.

15
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76.) As a result of the Plaintiff's compulsive gambling nurtured and negligently
observed and recklessly disregarded/ignored by Defendant and its staff, the Plaintiff

was hospitalized twice for scrious mental and physical ailments.

77.) As 1 result of the Plaintif's compulsive gambling nurtured and negligently
observed and recklessly disrcparded/ignored by Defendant and 1ts staff, the Plantff
was forced 10 go to intensive rehabilitation at Vanguard, a thirty-day rehab facility for

people wilh compulsive gambling addictions located in Minnesota.

78.) As a result of the Plaintitl's compulsive gambling nurtured and negligently
observed and recklessly disregarded/ignored by Defendant and its staff, the plaintiff was
forced to reside at CrossRoads Aftercare Facility for nine (9) months in the state of
Minncsota until the mental impairment accompanying compulsive gambling was

treated.

79.) That is was foresccable to the Defendants that it a person developed a
compulsive gambling habit observed, recorded and nurtured al Resorts Casino that the

attendant damages suffcred to the Plaintifl’ would oceur.

80.) That the consequences and damages suffered by the plaintift in this action
were forcseeable consequences to compulsive gamblers when the addiction of gambling
has "taken control” of the compulsive gambler's ability to reason and make prudent

decisions.

81) That the defendant, alter observing the plaintiff, through camcras, staf,
numerous recording devices and other surveillance devices, was in a better position to
have recognized a compulsive gambler, like the plainti{l’ and her behavior and to have
intervened 1o have better protected itself and the compulsive gambler, the plaintiff to
this action.

82.) That defendant, through the New Jersey Gambling Commission, scminars,
educational materials and required training, was in a better position to have identitied
the plaintiff as @ compulsive gambler and cither, suggested treatment, ¢jected the
plaintiff from Resorts Casino or suggested some other precautionary measure Lo protect

itself and the plaintift from the damages ensued.

16
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83.) That after countless warnings by dealers and staff, the management at
Delendant's Resorls Casino, recklessly, intentionally, maliciously and wantonly ignored
its staff and continued to send limousines, provide (rec room and board, send oul
mailings, make phone calls to the plaintiff, contacl the plainti/T at home and her place of
business, olfer plaintiff invitationals, send plaintiff free gifl coupons redecmable at
Resorts Casino and actively entice. lure, attract, addict, persuade, convince and use any

methods 1o lure plaintiff, a compulsive gambler, Lo the casino.

84 That the defendant was aware of the fact that plaintiff’ was a compulsive
gambler and irresponsibly and recklessly with no regard to the plaintiff's well being
continued to pick the plaintilf up at her home and shuttle ber to Resorts Casino,
knowing that she was a compulsive gambler, unable to recognizc the mental impairment

on her own.

85.) That the defendants recklessly, intentionally, wantonly, disregarded the
plaintiff's safety and benefiled from her psychiatric mental impairment to continue 1o
permit her to gamble, lose her money and become physically and psychologically
impaired, to the point of losing her carcer, license to practicc law, home, her parent's

home, [riends. reputation, and social status within her community.

86.) That the defendants' failure/omission to act in a reasonably prudent
manner after discovering thal plaintiff was a compulsive gambler, through observation
and staff reporling, was the proximate cause of the damages sulfercd by the plaintit! lo

this action.

87.) That plaintift suffered severe emotional and mental distress as a result of
the events occurred and was treated in a Minnesota rehabilitation center, Vanguard for
thirty days, then rcleased to the care of CrossRoads Aftercare Facility for ninc months

of treatment after that,

88.) That defendants actions and omissions were the proximate cause of

plaintiff's injuries and damages.

89.) Plaintiff request relief in the amount of Twenty Million ($20,000,000.00)

Dollars and as further relief the courl find just and sufficient.

17
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AND AS FOR PLAINTIFE'S FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION:
DEFENDANT'S VIOLATION OF THE RACKETEER INFLUENCED
AND CORRUPT ORGANIZATIONS ACT ("RICO™) WAS ONE OF
THE PROXIMATE CAUSES OF PLAINTIFE'S INJURIES

90.) Plaintiff incorporates by refercnce and re-alleges as if set forth fully herein

the foregoing allegations contained in paragraphs "1" through 88."

91 Resorts Casino constitutes an "enterprise” as that term is defined in the

RICO statutes,

92.) Resorts engaged in a "pattern of racketeering activity" by intentionally

engaging in at least two acts of "rackcteering activity” defined by the statutc.

93.) The three RICO claims alleged by the plaintiff to this action are based on
violations of 18 U.8.C.§ 1962(a), which prohibits investment or improper use of money
obtained from racketeering activity, §1962(c) prohibiting association with an enterprise
engaged in racketeering activity, and §1962(d) prohibiting the act of conspiring to
violate 18 U.S.C. §1962(a) or §1962(c). The predicate act underlying the RICO claims
is Resorts' violation of the mail fraud statule, 18 U.S.C. §1341.

04.) Resorts Casino and all defendants to this action solicited and encouraged
patrons, like the plainiff through the use of the United States Postal Service via mail
advertisement and mailings, to induce them through a course of fraudulent and
misleading acts and omissions intended to convince plaintiff and others of the false
beliel concerning how the gaming machines operale, as well as the extent o which

there is actually an opportunily to win on any given play.

95.) That Resorts Casino and all defendants to this action, through the use of
mailings and [alsc advertising encouraged plaintifl and others into the beliel that
electronic gambling devices are truc games of chance in which each individual play of
the game is subject to determinable odds of winning; that the odds are the same on cach
individual play of the game; that the risk and the rules by which the machines operate
do not vary among individual plays of the game; that the operator of the machines,
namely Resorts, does not have the ability arbittarily or selectively to affect whether a

particular bet is won or lost to favor particular playcrs over other; and that the operator,
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Resorls, cannot know in advanee when and how much a particular game will pay off,

when it did.

96.) That Resort Casino and all defendants to this action misled plaintil into
thinking that it had no control over paming and the odds of winning on the slot
machines, when it, in [act, did and sent out literaturc/advertisements luring and enticing

plaintiff to its Resorts Casino under [alse pretenses.

97.) That (hrough the continual and ceaseless use of mailings and
advertisemenls, in cooperation with phone calls and emails, the Defendunts cnticed,
solicited. convineed, misled, fraudulently suggested that the plaintifT's play on the slots

during the time she was a patron of the casino would result in high returns and rewards.

98.) That after having been identified as a problem gambler by the casino stafl
at Resorts Casino, Resorts Casino continued to use mail advertisements and solicilalions
containing fraudulent information to entice/convince an impaired PlainGil (an
impairment due to her addiction to gambling) to retumn 1o Resorts and try "her luck”

based on the information supplied by Resorts.

99.) That Resorts Casino misused its privilege to use the United States Postal
Service in furtherance of & systematic, intentional and malicious enticement of Plaintiff,
known to them to exhibit tendencies of a compulsive gambler, by mailing plaintiff
advertisements, invitationals and other gaming paraphernalia which would lurc Plaintitt

inlo further gaming activities.

100.) That Resorts collaborated with other casinos, namely MGM Grand and
Tropicana Casinos in las Vegas and Atlantic City, and, Bally's Park Place, Trump
Plaza, Taj Muhal, Showboat, Tropicana, Borgata and the Hilton Hotel and Casino in
Atlantic Cily, and all casinos in Atlantic City and Las Vegas in a systematic scheme
using & rating and reporting system used only by casinos to rate and report Plaintiff's
paming activilies in a central database accessible Lo these various casinos provided by
John Doe Corporation, which in turn, would usc this information to maliciously,
intentionally and/or recklessly entice player to gamble, but, more specifically, a known

compulsive gamblcr, namely plaintiff into further gaming activities.
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101.)  That this was an intcrstate scheme in which delendant released plaintiff's

gaming habits and activitics to other casinos in other states and other countries

102.)  That plaintiffs information was even released to the Atlantis Paradisc
lsland Resort and Casino in the Bahamas in an effort to grant plainGff free

accommodations for her continual gaming activities.

103)  That cach casino. including defendant Resort Casino, knew of plaintiff's
eaming activitics, average bets, reported abnormal activities and personal information,
and used this information to unjustly enrich itself and collaborate to enrich other casinos
al the expense of plaintiff and the mental impairment of compulsive gambling, which

was a malaise created and furthered by defendants’ wrongful acts.

104.)  That defendants release of plaintifl’s personal, gaming and economic
information for the benefit it itsclf, its casino and other casinos within and outside of
New Jersey in furtherance of a systematic scheme to defraud and mislead Plaintift,
through the use ol the mail and mailings, knowing the defendant to be a compulsive

gambler is in violation of RICO slatutes and public policy.

105.) Delendant Resorts Casino and all defendants to this action, received
income derived, directly or indircetly, from a pattern of racketecring activity and had
used or invested, directly or indirectly, some part of all of such income, or the proceeds
ol such income, in the acquisition ol an interest in, or the cstablishment or operation of,
an enterprise which is engaged in, or the activities of which aflect, interstale commerce,

to-wit, Resorls Hotel and Casino, and all defendants to this action.

106.) That by (ransporting, disseminating, (ransmitting, wiring, using
lelecommunications (o forward plaintiffs paming, personal, economic, habitual and
gambling aclivitics to other casinos in the state and out of (hé state, the defendant

engaged in activities that affected interstate commerce in violation of RICO) statutes.

107.)  As a further dircet and proximate resull of the defendants' rackeleering
activities in violation of RICO statutes as set forth above, plaintiff sustained the
following serious injuries and damages in the amount of TWENTY MILLION
($20,000,000.00) DOLLARS.
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AND AS FOR PLAINTIFF'S SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION: NEGLIGENCE

108.)  Plaintifl incorporates by refercnce and re-alleges as if set forth fully herein

the foregoing allcgations contained in paragraphs "1" through "107."

109.)  That Decfendant after numerous warnings by stafl and its management,
observation of the ceaseless and compulsive gaming activities of the plaintiff to this

action was made aware of the fact that the plaintiff was a compulsive gambler.,

110)  That after identifying plaintifl as a compulsive gambler, the defendant

failed (0 act and exercise due care to protect itsclf and the plaintitf to this action.

111}  That Defendant was under a general duty to exercisce reasonable carc in the

operation of its casino and gaming aclivitics,

112.)  That the Defendant was under a duly to use reasonable care under all
attendant circumstances to make fhe premises sale for invitees, such as the plaintiff,
considering that it was shuttling the plaintifl 1o its casino, Resorts and had a personal
relationship with the plaintiff.

113.)  That the Defendant knowingly knew the harms posed by gambling and its
casino, and it was foreseeable that providing gaming activities to the community would

produce compulsive gambling, as it did in the Plaintff Taveras.

114.)  That it was foreseeable that if Plaintiff was provided with a forum like
Defendant's casino, that there was the possibility that she would become a compulsive

gambler.

115.)  That is was foreseeable that if the Defendant continued to solicit the
plaintiff by mail, phonc and intemet, that she could become a compulsive gambler,
since Defendant already knew she was susceptible to a gambling addiction from
intenscly observing hecr paming activitics on a regular basis through surveillance

devices and staff.
[16.y  ‘Lhat is was forcsceable that if the Plaintill was picked up and shuitled to
Resorts Casino by Defendant's limousine company several from a frequency of several

times a year to several times o weck, that she was becoming a compulsive gambler.
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117.)  That is was foresceable that if Plaintiff continued to gamble and lose al the

pace she was gambling, that she would become compulsive and addicled to gambling,

[18) ‘That it was foresceable that if reports from defendant's staft repeatedly
mentioned that the plaintiff exhibited compulsive and addictive behavior at the gaming

tables, that plaintiff was becoming a compulsive gambler.

119)  That the Defendant was negligent in that it failed to cxercise the care thal
would have been exercised by the reasonsbly prudent person or casino under the same
sel of circumstances when faced with somcone wilh a compulsive gambling addiction.
"Reasonable care™ referred to as "duc care”, or, "ordinary care” in the trealment of
plaintitt.

120.)  That once the defendant picked up the plaintiff via limousine, it owed her

a duty of carc to keep her and the premises Resorts Casino safe for the plaintiff.

121.)  That defendant had a duty of care towards the plaintiff after it identified

her as a compulsive gambler to act in a reasonably prudent manner.

122))  That defendants’ failure (o act in a reasonably prudent mannct was ihe

proximatc cause of plaintiff's injuries.

123)  lhat the injurics or damages resultant werc proximalely caused by
Defendants' negligent act or failure to act in a timely manner to restrict Plamntiff,
admitted compulsive gambler, from access 10 Defendant's casino, Resorls in Atlantic
City, after observing Plaintiff's compulsive and addictive behavior towards the gaming

activities offered by defendant,

124.)  That the injury or damages caused as a resull of defendant's negligence
were foreseeablc consequences to a compulsive gambler, such as Plaintiff Taveras.
That Defendant owed Plaintiff Taveras a Duty of Care, not unlike dram shop owners,
when a patron is clearly intoxicated to restrict further beverage scrvice. That Defendant
Resorts is familiar, its staff having been trained to recognize and eject compulsive
pamblers from the gaming area, was in a betler position o have protecled Plaintift
Taveras and itself from liability.

125.)  That the defendant's negligence is a proximate causc of the plaintiff's

harm.
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126.)  The Defendant Resorts neglipently owned and operated Resorls Hotel and
Casino by permitting an identificd compulsive gambler, Taveras (o continue to gamble
after having been identificd by themselves and staff as a person with a compulsive
addiction and failed to protect plaintiff and itself from known dangers Resorts posed to

compulsive gamblers.

127)  The Dcfendants’ failure lo warn of known dangers casino posed to

compulsive gambters was the proximate cause of Plaintiff Taveras' injuries.

128.)  The Defendants' (ailure to immediately deny access to an identified
compulsive gambler and continue to service a compulsive gambler such as Plaintilf

Taveras, was the proxinute cause of Plaintiff's injuries.

129.)  Once Defendant Resorts Casino identified Plaintiff as a compulsive

gambler, Defendant Resorts Casinoe failed lo exercisc due care.

130.)  That the moment the defendant picked up the plainti[f via limousine at her
home, it assumed the duty to make the premises, Resort's safe from known and

untknown dangers.

131)  That once the defendant realized that the plaintiff was a compulsive
gambler, it was under a duly 10 protect or make the premises safe for the invitee, the
plaintiff because of the fact that she was a compulsive gambler, a casino was not a safc

refuge (or the plaintiff.

132,y That by continuing to shuttle plaintiff’ o the casino, almost daily, the
defendanl was ncgligent in it treatment of the plaimilT and was the proximate cause of

plaintiffs resulting injuries and damages.

133.)  As a further direct and proximate result of the negligence of defendants as
set forth above, plaintiff sustained the following serious injuries and damages in the

amount of TWENTY MILLION ($20,000.000.00) DOLLARS.

AND AS FOR PLAINTIFF'S THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION:
INTENTIONAL AND RECKLESS DISREGARD FOR PLAINTIFF'S SAFETY

134.)  Plaintiff incorporates by reference and re-alleges as if st forth fully herein

the foregoing allegations contained in paragraphs "1" through "133."
23
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135.)  That the defendant owed Plaintiff the duty to excrcise reasonable carc for
her safety. The possessor of the casino, the Defendant, was under the duty to take the
precautions that a relatively prudent possessor of land would take under the

circumstances to make the premiscs reasonably safe (o for his invitees.

136.) That Defendant was required to inspect the premises to discover
dangerous condilions to the Plaintiff, keep the premises in sale repair, remove hazards
where invitee would walk, obviate slippery conditions, anticipate foresecable activitics
and uses by invitees and other, and of course, conduct active operations on the premises

with rcasonable care for their safety.

137.) ‘Lhat after observing Plaintiff's gambling patierns, compulsion and
addiction to gambling, and concluding that the Defendant was a compulsive gambler,
the Defendanl as possessor of the casino, as an cstablishment enlrusted with the
transportation, lodging and shelter of plaintiff for the time that she was engaged in
paming aclivities, had an affirmative duty to protect the plaintif[ from these gaming

activities, when they became a threat to plaintiit's welfare.

138) That Defendant observed on numerous occasions per month, that the
plain(l had an addiction, could not refrain from gambling, would not eat for days,
would not sleep for days. would compulsively wager, expressed aggressive behavior,
would not go to the rest room, would not drink liquids and wouid gamble for endless

hours at a time. All caused by an addiction o gaming and the casino establishment,

139.)  That Defendant and its stafi’ had been trained regularly on compulsive
gambling behavior and protocols by consultant Amie Wexler and various other gaming
specialists.

140)  That Defendant knew early on that cach time the plaintiff pambled, it was

detrimental and posed a danger to plaintif(s physical, mental and emotional well-being.
I £ p f 2

141.)  That Defendant willfully and wantonly continued to pick up plaintiff via
limousine at her home, continued to solicit plaintiff vis a vis telephone and mailings,
continued to permit plaintill on the premiscs despitc knowing the plaintiff's compulsive
tendencies and the dangers it posed to her health, ie., the plaintiff would pass out on the

glevators.
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142))  That defendant, after identifying plaintifl as a compulsive gambler and
having been warned by its staff and by continuing to shuttle plaintiff to and from
Resorts Casino, providing room and board, sending continual mailings and advertising
to plaintiff's home and place of business, calling plaintiff and work and home. olTcring
incentives Lo lure plaintiff to casino, and offering other various enticements o attract
and entice plaintiff into gaming activities Resorts Casino, the defendant acted willfully,
intentionally, maliciously and wantonly in reckless disregard of plaintiff's safely and

well being.

143)  The Defendant engaged in willful and wanton misconduct when it
consciously acted, solicited and engaged Plaintiff, a compulsive gambler, into paming
aclivities. The Defendant also engaged in willful and wanton misconduct when it
refused to act knowing, or with reckless disregard to the probability, that injury would
result to the plainuff from its conduct or from its failure to take reasonable sieps to
avoid an impending danger gaming activities poscd to a compulsive gambler like
plaintilT,

144)  As a further direct and proximale result of the reckless, wanton and willful
disregard for plaintiff's well being by the defendants as set forth above, plaintiff
sustained the lollowing scrious injuries and damages in the amount of TWENTY

MILLION ($20,000,000.00) DOLLARS.

AND AS FOR PLAINTIFF'S FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION:
BREACH OF COMMON LAW DUTY OF CARE

145.)  PlaintilT incorporates by reference and re-alleges as it set forth fully herein

the foregoing allegations contained in paragraphs " | " through "144."

146.)  That under Common Law, "Those who do act and who choose to cngage
in aclivities that crcate a risk of injury to other, do have a duty to exercise care to avoid
injuring others.” That defendunt chose to cngage in providing the public with garming

activities and has a Common Law duty to avoid injuring others.
]

147))  That by operating a casino in the State of New Jersey, defendant chose to
y op ¥

undertake certain inherent risks associated with gambling, namely, that the some of the
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patrons to the casino would become addicted to gambling and suffer forcseeable losses

if anyone of them became addicted to gambling.

148)  That defendant had an alfirmative common law duty to protect ils patrons,
such as the plaintiff from risks associated with gambling created by the defendant's

casino.

149.)  That it was a forcsceable conscquence to the defendant's casino that
someone, like the plaintiff in this action would become addicted and suffer economic
losses due o the defendant's continual solicitation of the plaintiff, defendant's continual
shuttling and transporting of the plaintiff to and [rom the casino and defendant's failure
to report plaintiff's suspicious activities to the state/gaming commission after its staff
had reported her behavior numerous times and defendant's failure to act in a reasonahly
prudent manner after determining that plaintiff was becoming addicted to gambling by

defendant's affirmative acls.

150.)  As a further direct and proximate result of the negligence behavior and
breach of defendants’ common law duty of care towards the plaintiff in this action as set
forth above. plaintiff sustained the following serious injuries and damages n the

amount of TWENTY MILLION ($20,000,000.00) DOLLARS.

AS FOR PLAINTIFF'S FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION: STRICT LIABILITY

151.)  Plaintiff incorporates by reference and re-alleges as if set forth fully herein

the foregoing allegations contained in paragraphs "1" through "150."

152)  That defendant is strictly liable for the damages suffered by the plaintiff to
this action duc to the fact that it engaged in an "abnormally dangerous” activity, which

in turn was the proximate, direct, and main cause [or plaintiff's injuries.

153.)  That the defendant became sirictly liable for its "affirmative " when
actively soliciting the plaintift at her home and work, afler determining through extcrnal
observations via surveillance devices and stafl reports, that plaintiff was a compulsive

gambler.
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154.)  'That defendant by engaging in "gaming activities” created an abnormally
dangerous risk and activity to the plaintiff, a compulsive gambler, which in turn, causcd

the resulting injuries.

155)  Thal "gambling" or engaging in "gambling activities" provides an "ultra-
hazardous [orum™ and an "abnormally dangerous activity" to compulsive gamblers such

as plantift Taveras.

156.)  That compulsive gamblers such as Plaintiff Taveras are injured daily and
even, attempt to commit suicide when exposed to this activily due to the disastrous

results suffered by the compulsive gambler.

157.)  That once delendant detcrmined plaintiff’ was a compulsive gambler,
defendant’s Resorts Casino became and ultra-hazardous activity, providing serious risk

of economic and psychological injury and even death, to the plaintiff.

158)  That defendant through Resorts Casino, crcated an "ultra harzardous and
abnormally dangerous" forum for the community, particularly compulsive gamblers
such as Plaintiff Taveras, and that defendant is strictly liable for any damages or
consequences caused by ils sclf-crcated hazard, even if he cxercised the utmost care o

prevent harm,

159.)  As a further direct and proximate result of the defendant's engagement and
creation of an "abnormally dangerous" and "ultra-hazardous activity” to the plaintiff and
ensuing community, plaintiff sustained the following serious injuries and damages in

the amount of TWENTU MILLION ($20,000,000,00) DOLLARS.

AND AS FOR PLAINTIFF'S SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION:
DEFENDANT IS STRICTLY LIABLE THROUGH "RESPONDEAT SUPERIOR"
PRINCIPLES FOR THE NEGLIGENT ACTS OF 1T AGENTS OR EMPLOYEES

160.)  Plaintiff incorporates by reference and re-alleges as if set forth fully herein

the foregoing allcgations contained in paragraphs "1” through "159."

161} Bob Benz was an agent, manager and representative of the defendants’

Resorts Casino,
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162)  That defendunt is liable [or all agents acts or omissions performed through

his/her employment at the defendant's Resorts Casino.

163.)  That after numerous observations, reports from casino staff, viewing
creatic gaming activity reports for plaintiff, personally watching plaintiff's crratic
gaming activities, obscrving plaintiff gambling for day at a time, observing plainiiff's
lack of sleep, obscrving plaintiff's disruptive and aggressive behavior at the gaming
tables and personally observing plaintiffs addictive tendencies towards gambling, failed

to act in a reasonably prudent manner in preventing plaintifl's injuries.

164.)  That Delendant, Bob Benz, after numerous warnings by staff and its
management, observation of the ccaseless and compulsive gaming activities of the
plaintiff to this action was made aware of the fact that the plaintiff was a compulsive

gambler,

165.)  That after identifying plaintiff as a compulsive gambler, the Bob Bene

failed to acl and exercise due care to protect itself and the plaintitt to this action.

166.)  That Defendant Bob Ben« was under a gencral duty to exercige rcasonable

care in the operation of Resorts Casino and gaming activities.

167.)  That the Defendant Bob Benz was under a duty to use reasonable care
under all attendant circumstances to make the premises safe for invitees, such as the
plaintiff, considering that il was shuttling the plaintilf to its casino, Resorts and had a

personal relationship with the plaintiff.

168.)  That the Defendant Bob Benz knowingly kncw the harms posed by
gambling and its casino, and it was foreseeable that providing gaming activilies to the

community would produce compulsive gambling, as it did in the Plainti(T Taveras.

169.)  ‘That it was foreseeable that if Plaintiff was provided with a forum like
Defendant's employer, Resorts Casino, that there was the possibility that she would

become a compulsive gambler.

170.)  ‘That is was foreseeable that if the Defendant Bob Benz continued to solicit
the plaintiff by mail, phone and internet, that she could become a compulsive gambler,

since Defendant already knew she was susceptible to a gambling addiction from
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intensely observing her gaming activities on a regular basis through surveillance

devices and staff.

171.)  That is was foreseeable that if the Plaintiff, after approval was granted by
Bob Benz. was shuttled and transported to Resorts Cagino by Defendant's limousine
company several from a frequency of several times a year (o scveral times a week, that

she was becoming a compulsive pambler.

172.)  ‘That is was forcseeable to the defendant Bob Benz, that if Plaintiff
continued to gamble and lose at the pace she was gambling, that she would become

compulsive and addicted to gambiing,

173.)  That it was foreseeable to the defendant, Bob Beny, that if reports from
defendant's staff repeatedly mentioned that the plaintiff exhibited compulsive and
addictive behavior at the gaming tables, that plaintiff was becoming a compulsive

gambler.

174}  'I'hat the Defendant Bob Benz was negligent in that he failed to exercisc
the care that would have been exercised by the reasonably prudent persen or casino
manager under the same set of circumstances when faced with someonc with a
compulsive gambling addiction. "Reasonable care” referred to as "duc care", or,

"ordinary care" in the treatment of plaintift,

175.) That once the defendant Bob Benv authorized the transporting and
shuttling of the plaintiff via limousine, he owed her a duty of care to keep her and the

premises Resorts Casino safe for her,

176.3  That defendant Bob Benz had a duty of care towards the plaintiff afier it

identified her as a compulsive gambler to act in a reasonably prudent manmer.

177.)  That delendant Bob Benz failure to act in a reasonably prudent manner

was the proximate cause of plaintiff's injuries.

178.)  That the injuries or damages resultant werc proximately caused by
Defendant Bob Benz's negligent acts or failure to act in a timely manner to restrict
Plaintiff, admitied compulsive gambler, from access to Defendant'’s casino, Resorts in
Atlantic City, after observing PlaintilT's compulsive and addictive behavior towards the
gaming activities offered by defendant.
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179.)  ‘Fhat the injury or dumages caused as a result of defendant's negligence

were foresceable consequences (o a compulsive gambler, such as Plaintiff Taveras.

180)  That Defendant Bob Benz owed Plaintiff Taveras a "Reasonable Duty of
Care," not unlike dram shop owners, when a patron is clearly intoxicated to resirict
further beverage service. That Defendant Resorts is familiar, its staff having been
trained to recognize and eject compulsive gamblers from the gaming area, was in a

better position to have protected Plaintill Taveras and itself from liability.

181.)  That the defendant Bob Rens's negligence is the proximate cause of the

plaintiff's harm.

182.)  The Defendant Bob Benz as an employee ol Resorts Casino negligenty
operated Resorts Hotel and Casino by permitting an identificd compulsive gambler,
Taveras to conlinue to gamble after having been identilied by themselves and staff as a
person with a compulsive addiction and failed to protect plainii fT"and itself from known

dangers Resorts posed lo compulsive gamblers.

183.) The Defendants' failure to wam ol known dangers cusino posed 1o

compulsive gamblers was the proximate cause of Plainti{t’ Taveras' injuries.

184) The Defendants' failure to immediately deny access to an identificd
compulsive gambler and continue to service a compulsive gambler such as Plaintifl

Taveras, was the proximate cause of PlaintifT's injuries.

185.)  That once Defendant Bob Benz identified Plaintiff as a compulsive

gambler, Defendant Resorts Casino failed to cxercise duc care.

186.)  That the moment the defendant picked up the plaintiff via limousine at her
home, it assumed the duty to make the premises, Resort's safe from known and

unknown dangers.

187.) That once the defendant Bob Bens rcalized that the plaintiff was a
compulsive gambler, it was under a duty to protect or make the premises safe for the
fnvitee, the plaintiff because of the fact that she was a compulsive gambler, a casino

was nol a safe refuge lor the plaintiff.
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188)  That by continuing to shuttle plantiff to the casino, almost daily, the
defendant Bob Benz was negligent in it treatment of the plaintiff and was the proximate

cause of plaintiffs resulting injuries and damages.

189.)  That Defendant Resorts Casino is strictly liable for the vicarious acls of its
agents, and is strictly liable [or Bob Benz failure fo acl in a reasonable prudenl manner
(owards plaintiff, a known compulsive gambler, afler receiving sensitivity lraining in
this arca. and was the proximate cause of plaintiff's injuries regardless of whether

Resort cxercised any carc to avoid the harm.

190.)  As a further direct and proximate result of the negligence ol defendants as
sct forth above, plaintiff sustained the following serious injurics and damages in the

amount of TWENTY MILLION ($20,000,000.00) DOLLARS.

AND AS FOR PLAINTIFF'S SEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION: BREACH OF
IMPLIED COVENANT OF GOOD FAITH AND DEALING

191.)  Plainti{f incorporates by reference and re-allcges as if set (orth fully herein

the foregoing allegations contained in paragraphs "1" through "190."

162.)  On or aboul September of 2003, Plaintiff Taveras became a patron of
Defendants’ casino. she had a Resorts Casino card number of #2523315 and her host

was Resorts Casino representalive, Bob Benz.

193)  That once plaintiff became a patron of defendant's Resorts Casino, the

casino covenanted to act in good faith and fair dealing.

194)  That once defendant Resorts Casino staff and agents identified plaintilt as
a compulsive gambler, a mental impairment existed in plaintiff's reasoning and an
addictive behavioral patterns, that this impairment was observed and reported (o casino

management, who proceeded to ignore it.

195.)  That the compulsivity and addictive nature of the "menial diseasc” of
gambling. as termed by the Psychiatric Association, had taken hold of the plaintiff's
mental (aculties and affected the plaintiff's rational thinking patterns, so much so, that

the defendant and its agents commented on it regularly and were in 4 better position to
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have identified this problem and taken mecasures to prevent injuries to plaintiff’ and

protect itself.

166.) That when Bob Bens suggested (hat the plaintiff, in her impaired
condition, sign a "Waiver of Liability" on behalf of Resorts Casino, to protect itself
from any exposurc to lability from plaintiff's continued gaming—defendant was not

acting in "good faith” or "fairly dealing” with the plaintiff,

197.)  That defendant was trying to unjustly enrich itself at the expense of the

plaintiff and her impairment and trying to Vimit Hability for itself in the process.

198.)  That the plaintilT had a rcasonable measure ol reporl and trust established
with the defendant and its staff, due to the fact that they chatted regularly, watched and
commented on her gambling for days, provided her with comfortable transportation to
and from the casino and knew her not to be a foreign customer of the casino. She was
known to most of the staff and entrusted her care and well heing with them while she

was in New Jerscy, a state foreign to her own.

199.)  That based on this perceived trust between the plaintiff and the defendent,

that the defendant took advantage and benefited from the relationship because the

defendant was unable o make rational decisions due to the mental defect that

accompanies a "gambling addiction.”

200.)  That the defendant was fully aware of plaintiff's gambling problem aller

observing her for gaming patterns lor over two (2) years.

201.)  That Resorts Casino violated the implied covenant of "good faith" and
"fair dealing" by attempling to usc plaintiff's mental impairrﬁenl to its cconomic
advantage.

202.)  As a further direct and proximate result of the defendants breach of its

implied covenant of good [aith and fair dealing with the plaintiff when she becamc a

patron ol Resorts Casino, as set forth above, plaintiff sustained the following serious

injuries and damages in the amount of TEN MILLION ($10,000,000) DOLLARS.

AND AS FOR PLAINTLFF'S EIGHTL CAUSE OF ACTION:
UNJUST ENRICIIMENT
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203.)  PlaintilT incorporates by refercnce and re-alleges as if set forth fully herein

the forepoing allegations contained in paragraphs "1" through "202."

204)  On or about September of 2003, Plaintilf Taveras becamc a patron of
Defendants' casino, she had a Resorts Casino card number of #2523315 and her host

was Resorts Casino representative, Bob Benz.

205.) That once plaintiff became a patron of delendant's Resorts Casino, the

casino covenanted to act in good faith and fuir dealing,

206.) That once plaintiff was identified by defendant Resorts Casino staff and

agents as a compulsive gambler, a mental impairment existed in plaintift's reasoning.

207.)  That the compulsivity and addictive nature of the "mental disease" of
gambling, as termed by the Psychiatric Association, has taken hold and the addictive
behaviors affected the plaintiff's rational thinking patterns, the defendant and its agents,
were in a beller position to have identified this problem and taken measures o prevent
injuries to plaintiff and proteet itself,

208.) That when Bob Bens suggested that the plaintifl, in her impaired
condition, sign a "Waiver of [iability" on behall of Resorts Casino, to protect itself
from any exposurc to liability from plaintiff's continued gaming-- defendant was not
acting in "good faith" or "fairly dealing” with the plaintiff.

209) That defendant was trying to unjustly cnrich itself at the expense of the
plaintiff and trying 1o limit liability for itself in the process.

210  ‘That Resorls Casino violaled the implied covenant of "good faith" and
"[ait dealing” by allempting to use plaintiffs mental impairment to its £Conomic
advantage.

211.)  That defendant attempted to use plaintiff's gambling addiction to unjustly
enrich itself at the expense of the plaintiff,

2123  That defendant did unjustly enrich itself by negligently permitting plaintilT
to conlinually gamble at defendant's Resorts Casino.

213.)  That defendant did unjustly curich jtself after identifying plaintff as a

compulsive gambler and continuing to transport her from her home in New York to the
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casino on a regular basis, offer casino comps and soliciting her on a regular basis

through mailings.

214.)  That defendant did unjustly enrich itself by negligently permitting plaintiff
to continually gamble and lose over Eight Hundred Thousand ($800,000) Dollars at

Defendants Resorts Hotel and Casino.

215)  As a further direct and proximate result of the defendants negligence and
breach of its implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing, and unjust enrichment at
the expense of the plaintiff when she became a patron of Resoris Casino, as set forth
above, plaintiff sustained the following serious injuries and damages in the amount of

TWENTY MILLION ($20,000,000.00) DOLLARS.

AND AS FOR PLAINTIFF'S NINTH CAUSE OF ACTTON: BANKING FRAUD;
DEFENDANTS' FAILURE TO REPORT VIOLATED THE BANK SECRECY ACT

216.)  Plaintiff incorporates by reference and re-alleges as if set forth fully herein

the forcgoing allegations contained in paragraphs "1 through "215."
E Paragrdy g

217.)  That the defendant Resorts Holel and Casino had a statutory and [ederal
duty to reporl cash transactions in excess of Ten Thousand ($10,000) Dollars to the
Internal Revenuc Service on a regular basis pursuant lo Scetion 60501, 26 U.S.C. and
31 U.8.C. & 3331, to report these transactions to The Financial Crimes Enforcement

Network and file reports pursuant to the Bank Seccrecy Act, 31 CFR § 103.

218)  That when plaintiff Taveras was pambling sums in excess of Ten thousand
dollars and bringing cash to the casino over these sums, defendant Resorts had a duty to

report these transaclions to the [nternal Revenue Scrvice,

219.)  The plaintiff was gambling an average of two (o three thousand dollars an

hour on any given gambling day.

220.)  That plaintilT was pambling for days at a time at defendant Resorts
Casino. sometimes gambling as much as One Hundred Fifly Thousand Dollars in cash

over a weekend as was the case in September of 2005,
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221)  That defendant Resorts waiched plaintiff withdraw from one ol'its cashicrs
monies in excess of Ten thousand dollars over a series of hours and days, yet failed to

report this activity to the TRS.

222} That the defendant watched plaintiff retrieve, gamble, lose, win, withdraw
mories in excess of Ten thousand dollars on an hourly basis daily and failed to report

this to the 1RS,

223))  That defendanl's faiture to report Lo the IRS plainti(T's suspicious, frenetic,
compulsive monetary withdrawals, monetary outlays, monetary loses/gains, all in

excess of Ten thousand dollars, proximately caused plaintilf's injuries.

2243  That defendants' fraudulent reporting to the IRS was the proximatc cause
of plaintiff's injurics.
225.)  That defendant had a statutory duty to report Lo the IRS cash transactions

by any persen who in a single transaction transacted in amounts with defendant Resorts

Casino greater than Ten thousand dollars.

226.) That defendant's willful, negligent, intentional, malicious failure in
cxercising due carc in ils duty to report excessive cash transactions over Ten thousand
dollars to the IRS. which would have alerted the IRS of plaintiff's compulsive gambling
hahit and possibly theft of escrow funds, were the proximatc cause of plaintiff's in] uries
and damages.

227  That defendant's willful, negligent, intentional, malicious failure to report,
kept plaintifl's gambling activilies a secret {rom the IRS, the Casino Gaming
Commission, the Financial Crime Enforcement Network and other public
agencies/authorities who would have interceded to curb plaintiff's behavior, at least in

handling monies.

228.)  That defendant's willful, negligent, intentional, malicious failure to report
was donc in anticipation of keeping plaintiff's gaming a secrct for the benefit of the
defendant's casino.

220)  That as a resull of the defendant’s intentional lack of reporting, plaintilT

lost her license Lo practice law, her parent's home, (worth $850,000), her car, her
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apartment, her law office, her reputation and forced her to seek almost a year of

treatment in a rchabilitation facility, as a result of defendants’ acts.

230.)  That plaintiff speni almost a year of her life in a rehabilitation facility,
CrossRoads Aficreare and Vanguard, for compulsive gambling treatment, as a result of

defendants’ acts.

231y  That plaintiffs life was uprooted and she was removed and relocated (o
the state of Minnesota where she now resides to continue recovery from the events

veeurted as a tesult of defendants’ acts.

2323 That the damages suffered by the plaintiff’ were foresgeable damages as
they occur to many compulsive gamblers and the defendant was aware of the
consequences its lack of reporting would cause to any gambler, but, namely, the
plaintift to this action.

233} As a further direct and proximate result of the defendants breach of its
duty to report plaintiff's cash transactions in excess of Ten thousand dollars to the IRS
and other governmental agencies, as set forth above, plaintill sustained the following
scrious injuries and damages in the amount of TWLENTY MILLION ($20,000,000.00)
DOLLARS.

AND AS FOR PLAINTIFEF'S TENTH CAUSE OF ACTION: BREACH OF

STATUTORY DUTY TO REPORT GAMING ACTIVITIES IN EXCESS OF TEN
THOUSAND DOLLARS VIA CASINO CURRENCY TRANSACTION REPORT

2343  PlaintifV incorporates by reference and re-alleges as if set forth fully herein

the foregoing allecgations contained in paragraphs "1" through "233."

2353  That the defendant Resorts Hotel and Casino had a statutory and federal

duty to report cash transactions in cxcess of Ten Thousand ($10,000) Dollars to the
Internal Revenue Service on a regular basis pursuant to Section 60501, 26 U.5.C. and

31 U.S.C. § 5331, to report these transactions to The Financial Crimes Enforcement

Network and filc reports pursuant to the Bank Secrecy Act, 31 CFR § 103.

236.)  ‘Ihat when plaintiff I'averas was gambling sums in excess of Ten thousand
dollars and bringing cash to the casino over these sums, defendant Resorts had a duty to

report these transactions 10 the Internal Revenue Service, but also had a duty to file a
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Casino Currency ‘Transaction Report accounting for the sums of meoncy in excess of Ten
thousand dollars exhibited, gambled, withdrawn and exchanged at delendant Resorls

Casino.

237.)  The plaintiff was gambling an average ol two to three thousand dollars an

hour on any given gambling day.

238)  Thatl plaintiff was gambling for days at a time al defendant Resorts
Casino, somctimes gambling as much as One Hundred Fifly Thousand Dollars in cash

over a weekend as was the case in September of 2005,

239.)  That defendant Resorts walched plaintiff withdraw from one of its cashiers
monies in excess of Ten thousand dollars over a series of hours and days, yct failed (o

rcport this aclivily to the LIRS,

240.)  That the defendant watched plaintif( retrieve, gamble, lose, win, withdraw
monies in exccss of Ten thousand dollars on an hourly basis daily and failed to report

this to the [RS.

241)  That defendant’s failure to report to the [RS plainti(T's suspicious, frenetic,
compulsive monetary withdrawals, monetary outlays, monetary loses/gains, all in

excess of Ten thousand dollars, proximately caused plaintifl's injuries.

242)  That defendants' fraudulent reporting to the IRS was the proximate cause

of plaintiff’s injurics.

243}  That defendant had a statutory duty to report to the IRS and Casino
Gaming Commission cash transactions by any person who in a single (ransaction

iransacted in amounts with defendant Resorts Casino greater than Ten thousand dollars,

244) That defendant's willful. negligent, intentional, malicious failure in
exercising due care in its duty to report excessive cash transactions over Ten thousand
dollars via a Casino Currency Transaction Report to the 'St.a.te of New Jersey and
l'ederal agencies, which would have alerted them of plaintiff's compulsive gambling
habitsand possibly theft of escrow funds, were the proximate causc of plaintif!’s injuries

and damages.

37



http://www.onpointnews.com

©n Point News
Case 1:07-cv-04555-RMB-JS Document1  Filed 09/20/2007 Page 35 of 42

2453  That defendant's willful, negligent, intentional, malicious failure io file an
accurate Casino Currency Transaction Report, kept plaintiff's gambling activities a
seeret from the IRS, the Cagino Gaming Commission, The Financial Crime
Enlorcement Network and other public agencies/authorities who would have interceded

1o curb plaintiff's behavior, at least in handling monies.

246.)  Thal defendant's willful, negligent, intentional, malicious failure to report
was done in anticipation of keeping plaintiffs gaming a sccret for the benefit of the

defendant's casino.

247)  That as a result of the defendant's intentional lack of reporting, plamt tt
lost her licensc to practice law, her parent's home(worth $750,000), her car, her
apariment, her law office, her reputation und forced her to seek almost a year of

treatment in a rehabilitation facility.

248.)  That the damages suffered by the plaintiff were forcsceable damages as
they occur to many compulsive gamblers and the defendant was aware of the
consequences its lack of reporting would cause to any gambler, but, namely, the

plaintiff to this action,

249 As a (urther direct and proximatc result of the defendants breuch of its
duty to reporl plaintiff's cash transactions in excess of Ten thousand dollars to the IRS,
and filing a truc and accurate account of plaintifl's activities via a Casino Currency
Transaction Report, as set forth above, plaintift sustained the lollowing serious injurics

and damages in the amount of TWENTY MILLION ($20,000,000) DOLLARS.

AND AS FOR PLAINTIFF'S ELEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION:

INTENTIONAL INFLICTION OF EMOTIONAL DISTRESS

250.)  Plaintiff incorporates by reference and re-alleges as if set forth fully herein

the foregoing allegations contained in paragraphs "1" through "249."

251)  That Defendant and ils staff after numerous warnings by staff and its
management, observation of the ceaseless and compulsive gaming activities of the
plaintiff to this action was made awarc of the fact that the plaintilf was a compulsive

gambler,
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252.)  That afler identifying plaintiff as a compulsive gambler, the defendant
through its agent, Bob Benz, intentionally, maliciously and wantonly failed 10 act and

exercise dug carc to protect itself and the plaintiff to this action.

253)  That Defendanl Bob Benz was under a general duty to exercise reasonable

care in the operation of Resorts Casino and gaming activities.

2543  That due to the nature of the relationship between defendant, its staff and
(he plaintiff that defendant and its agents were aware of the plaintifls’ gambling
addiction and intentionally continued to "fuel” that addiction by transporting her to and
from the casino, comping her stay at the casino, mailing her ofler and incentives Lo stay

at the casino and enticing her into further gaming activities.

255)  That the defendant's acts were all willful and of its own accord and that
defendani knew that its acts would cause severe emolional and mental distress if they

contlinued to solicit the plainti{f in her current mental state.

256.)  That it was forcsccable that if’ Plaintitf was provided with a forum like
Defendant's employer, Resorts Casino, that there was the possibility that she would

become a compulsive gambler and suffer sever emotional distress.

257)  That is was foreseeable that if the Defendant Bob Benz continued to solicit
the plaintifl by mail, phone and internet, that she could become a compulsive gambler,
since Defendant already knew she was susceptible to a gambling addiction from
intensely observing her gaming activities on a regular basis through surveillance

devices and staff,

258)  That is was foreseeuble that if the Plaintiff, after approval was granted by
Bob Benz, was shuttled and iransported to Resorts Casino by Defendant’s limousine
company several from a frequency ol several times a year to scveral times a week, that

she was becoming a compulsive gambler.

259)  That is was foreseeable to the defendant Bob Benz, that il Plaintiff
continued to gamblc and lose al the pace she was gambling, that she would become

compulsive and addicted (o gambling and suffer sever emotional distress.

260.) That the Defendant Bob Benz intentionally caused plaintiff severe

cmotional distress by continuing to entice her into gaming activities
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261.) That once the defendant Bob Benz authorized the transporting and
shuttling of the plaintiff via limousine, he owed her a duty of care to keep her and the
premiscs Resorts Casino safe for her.

262.) That defendant Bob Benz intentionally failed to act in a reasonably
prudent manner and his intentional act was the proximate cause of plaimifT's injurics

and mental distress.

263.)  That the injurics or damages resultant werc proximalely caused by
Defendant Bob Benz's intentional failure to act in a timely manner w restrict Plaintift,
admitted compulsive gambler, from access to Defendant's casino, Resorts in Atlantic
City, after observing Plaintiff's compulsive and addictive behavior towards the gaming

activities oftered by defendant.

264)  Thal the injury or damages caused as a result of defendant’s intentional

acts were [oreseeable consequences to a compulsive gambler, such as Plaintiff Faveras.

265)  That Defendant Bob Benz ewed Plaintiff Taveras a "Reasonable Duty of
Care.” not unlike dram shop owners, when a patron is clearly intoxicated to restrict
further beverage service. Thal Delendant Resorts is familiar, its staff having been
trained to recognize and eject compulsive gamblers from the gaming area, was n a

better position o have protected Plaintiff Taveras and itself from liability.

266.)  That the defendant Bob Benz's intentional acts were the proximate cause

ol the plaintiff's harm and mental distress.

267.) The Defendant Bob Benv as an employee of Resorls Casino negligenty
operated Resorts Ilotel and Casino by permitting an identified compulsive gambler,
Taveras to continue lo gamble after having been identificd by themselves and staff as a
person with a compulsive addiction and failed to protect plaintiff and itself from known

dangers Resorts posed to compulsive gamblers.

268.) ‘The Defendants' intentional failure to immediately deny access to an
identificd compulsive gambler and continue to service a compulsive gambler such as

Plaintifl Taveras, was the proximate cause of Plaintiff's injuries.

269.) That once Defendumt Bob Benz identified Plaintiff as a compulsive

gambler, Defendant Resorts Casino failed to exercise due carc.
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270.)  ‘That by continuing to shuttle plaintiff to the casino, almost daily, the
defendant Bob Benz intentional act 1o continue to entice the plaintiff inlo gaming
aclivies was the proximale cause of plaintiffs resulting injuries, mental distress and

damages,

271)  That Defendant Resorts Casino is strictly liable for the vicarious acts of its
agents, and is strictly liable for Bob Benz intentional failure to act in a reasonable
prudent marner towards plaintilf, a known compulsive gambler, after receiving
sensitivity training in this area, and was the proximatc cause of plaintiff's injuries
regardless of whether Resort exercised any care to avoid the harm,

272)  As a further direct and proximate result of the intentional acts of

delendants as sct forth above, plaintiff sustained the following serious injurics and

damages in the amount of TEN MILLTON ($10,000,000) DOLLARS.

AND AS FOR PLAINTIFF'S TWELFTH CAUSE OF ACTION:
NEGLIGENT INFLICTION OF EMOTIONAL DISTRESS

273.)  Plaintiff incorporates by reference and rc-alleges as i set forth fully herem

the foregoing alicgations contained in paragraphs "1" through "272."

274)  That defendant Resorts Casino and its staff after numerous warnings by
staff and its management, observation of the ceaseless and compulsive gaming activities
of the plaintiff to this action was made aware of the fact that the plaintiff was a

i compulsive gambler,

275)  That alter identifying plaintiff as a compulsive gambler, the defendants
through its agents, negligently failed to act and exercise due care to protect itself and the

plaintiff to this action and as a result negligently caused plainti{l's mental distress.
276.)  That defendant Bob Benz was undet a general duty to exercise reasonable
care in the operation of Resorls Casino and gaming activities.

277y That due w0 the naturc of the relationship between delendant, its stafl and
the plaintifl that defendant and its agents were aware of the plainti(ls' gambling

addiction and negligently continued to "fuel” (hat addiction by transporting her to and
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from the casino, comping her stay al the casino, mailing her offer and incentives to slay

at the casino and enticing her into further paming activitics.

278)  That the defendants’ acts were all negligent and that delendant knew that
its acts would cause severe emotional and mental distress if they continued to solicit the

plaintiff in her current mental state, but, negligently ignored the risks.

279)  ‘Lhat it was loresccable that if Plaintiff was provided with a forum like
Delendant's ecmployer, Resorts Casino, thal there was the possibility that she would

become a compulsive gambler and sufler severe emotional distress.

280.)  ‘Lhat is was loresccable that if the Defendant Bob Benz continued to solicit
the plaintiff by mail, phone and intemet, that she could become a compulsive gambler,
since Defendant alrcady knew she was susceptible to a gambling addiction from
intensely observing her gaming activities on a regular basis through surveillance

devices and statl’

281.)  That is was foreseeable that if the PlaintifT, aftcr approval was granted by
Bob Benz, was shuttled and transported to Resorts Casino by Defendant’s limousine
company several from a frequency of scveral times a year to several times a week, that

she was becoming a compulsive pambler.

282)  That is was forcsceable lo the defendant Bob Benz, that if Plaintiff
continued to gamble and lose at the pace she was gambling, that she would become

compulsive and addicted to gambling and suffer sever emotional distress.

283.) That the Decfendant Bob Benz negligently caused plaintiff severe
cmotional distress by continuing to cntice her into gaming activitics and ignoring

warnings [rom staff.

284.) ‘lhat once the defendant Bob Benz authorized the transporting and
shuttling of the plaintiff via limousine, he owed her a duty of care 1o keep her and the

premises Resorts Casino safe for her.

285.) That delendant Bob Beny intentionally failed to act in a rcasonably
prudent manner and his intentional act was the proximate cause of plaintitf’s injuries

and mental distress.
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286.) lThat the injuries or damages resultant were proximately caused by
Nefendant Bob Benz's negligent failure to act in a timely manner to restrict Plaintiff,
admitted compulsive gambler, from access to Defendant's casino, Resorts in Atlantic
City, after observing Plaintiffs compulsive and addictive behavior towards the gaming

activities offered by defendant.

287.)  That the injury or damages caused as a result ‘of defendant's intentional

acls were foresceable consequences 10 a compulsive gambler, such as Plaintiff Taveras.

288)  That Defendant Bob Beny owed Plaintiff Taveras a "Reasonable Duty of
Care," not unlikc dram shop owners, when a patron is clearly intoxicated to restrict
further beverage service. That Defendant Resorts is familiar, its staff having been
trained to recognize and gject compulsive gamblers from the paming area, was in a

hetter position to have protected Plaintiff Taveras and itself from liability.

289)  That the defendant Bob Benz's negligent acts were the proximale cause of

the plaintift's harm and mental distress.

29().) The Dcfendant Bob Benz as an employec of Resorts Cusino negligently
operated Resorts [Totel and Casino by permitting an identified compulsive gambler,
Taveras to continue (o gamble after having been identi fied by themselves and stall as a
person with a compulsive addiction and failed to protect plaintiff and itself [rom known

dangers Resorts posed to compulsive gamblers,

201.)  The Defendants' negligen! failure to immediately deny aceess to an
identified compulsive gambler and continue to service a compulsive gambler such as

Plaintiff Tavcras, was the proximate cause of Plaintiff's injuries.

292.)  That once Defendant Bob Benz identificd Plaintiff as a compulsive

gambler, Defendant Resorts Casine failed to exercise due care.

293)  That by conlinuing to shuttle plaintiff to (he casino, almost daily, the
defendant Bob Benz intentional act to continue to cntice the plaintiff into gaming
aclivies was the proximate cause ol plaintiffs resulting injuries, mental distress and
damages.

294.)  That Delendant Resorts Casino is strictly liable for the vicarious acts of its

agents, and is strictly lisble for Bob Benz intentional failure to act in a reasonuble
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prudent mamner towards plaintiff, a known compulsive gambler, alter rcociving

sensitivity training in this ares, and was the proximate cuvse of plaintiffs injuries

rogardicss of whether Resorl exercisod any care to avold (the harm.

295} As a further divect and proximate result of the negligent acts of delendunts

as sct forth above, plainti (1 sustaincd the following serions injurics and dumages in the

amount o TWENTY MILLION ($20,000,000.00) DOLLARS.

DEMAND

WHERETORE, the Plainti (1 demands relief as follows:

I.

1,

Tudgment against the defendanis RESORTS INTERWATIOMNAL HOVLL, INC.,
/YA RESORTS HOTEL AND CASINO (A wholly owned subsidiary of Sun
International  Hotcls Limited), CODONIAL CAPITAL, TNC., SUN
INTERNATIONAL IIOTELS LIMITED, 308 BENZ, individually and as an
agent of Resorts lntermational Hetel, Ine., D/B/A Resoris Hotel And Casino,
BETTY DIANDRIA, individually and s an agent of Rescrts Intemational Hotel,
Inc., T/R/A Resoris Hotel And Casino, AGGIE RENA, individually and a3 an
agemt of JOHN DOE CORPORATION, TRUMI' TT.AZA HCLTL AND
CASINOG, MGM GRANT HOTEL AND CASING, TAI MAJAL IIOTEL AND
CASING, TROPICANA HOTEL AND CASING, HARRAITS SHOWBOAT
HOTEI, AND CASINO, BALLY'S PARK PLACE IIOTFL AND CASINO,
HARKAITS GNTERTAINMENT, INC., JOIIN DOE CORPORATION, JOBN
DOG#L-5, el al, in the ameunt of TWENTY MILLION DOLLARS
{$20,000,000.00) plus inferests and costs for all counts of Plainti i"s Complaint.

And, as for farther relief the Cowt finds just and proper.

‘Arclin WMargnreita Taveras
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-

VERIFICATION OF COMPLAINT

State of New Jersey

County of Newark , to wit:

Arelia Margarita Taveras , the Complainant named in the foregoing
Complaint being duly sworn, says that the facts and allegations
contained therein are true, except so far as they are therein stated to
be on information, and that, so far as they are therein stated to be on

information, she/he helieves them to be true.

CYNTHIA 3. TEWS
NOTARY FUBLIC-MNHESRTA
My Gommataion Expurs Jan 3), 2014
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